
Recreation Advisory Board  
March 12, 2012 
 
Members Present 
Lonnie Gilliam 
Wanda Hawthorne 
Wayne Wheeler 
John Parrish 
Todd Dunnuck 
Josh O’Connor 
Mary Ann West 
 
Staff Present 
Roderick Simmons, Director 
Abigail Riley, Special Projects Coordinator 
Diane Ruggiero, Cultural Arts Superintendent 
Frank McGowan, Business Services Superintendent 
Al Kopf, Planning & Development Superintendent 
Seth Hendler-Voss, Interim Park Operation Manager 
 
Wanda called the meeting to order at 12:33. 
 
Approval of February Minutes 
Todd motioned to approve the February minutes; it was seconded by Josh; and all approved. It 
passed unanimously. 
 
Deferred Maintenance FY 11-12 Presentation 
Seth Hendler-Voss, Interim Park Operations Manager, presented the deferred maintenance 
projects for this fiscal year. Council budgeted money for deferred maintenance for projects that 
need to get done but haven’t had the funding to do.  
 
Murphy-Oakley: Parks Maintenance will be adding roofs to the dugouts. Seth said that the ball 
field community has been asking for. We are designing a system that can be replicated at all ball 
fields. The roofing system will keep water and other debris out of the dugout and provide shade 
for players. We will also be replacing the retaining wall for the ball field. Parks Maintenance will 
replace the wall system with a modular unit that has a natural rock feel to it. It will be three to 
four feet for people to sit on top of the wall. We are also replacing roofs on the existing restroom 
building and picnic shelter. Shingled roofs will be replaced with metal roofs to accommodate a 
system to replicate and create standards for all park maintenance issues. The entire project 
should cost around $50,000. 
 
Memorial Stadium: The Veteran’s Memorial is approximately two years old. It is losing turf and 
about 95 percent of the ornamental trees that were designed for the memorial. Due to lack of 
funding for irrigation and poor soil on the site, these trees died. Park Maintenance will replace 
the earth and sod at the site. An irrigation system will also be installed. Lights will be added to 
enhance the design for night viewing. There will also be roof replacements for the restroom 



building and ticket booths. If funds exist, the bathroom will also be painted. The perimeter fence 
is deteriorating. We will install 800 linear feet of fencing to keep people from eroding the new 
turf in the Veteran’s Memorial. 
 
Playground Replacement: Eight to ten swings will be replaced with swings that have a harness 
system. Current swings have had harnesses removed. They are also cracked. People are currently 
able to steal the swings; Park Maintenance will put a system in place that will stop this with the 
new swings. 
 
Carrier Park: Restrooms will receive a replacement of commodes and sinks. We will also be 
adding new drains and heating units. It will be a costly overhaul. The restrooms will be designed 
this year and start the improvements next year. 
 
Wayne asked what is at the top of the Carrier Park structure. Seth and Roderick answered that it 
was the spotter’s booth for the old race track. Seth said he wanted to address code issues and 
other issues. He added that there needs to be a focus on the code issues and to fix later. 
 
Roderick asked Seth to speak to the floodplain map. Seth said that the restroom used to be in the 
floodplain, but it is no longer due to revisions in the map. He said there are limited opportunities 
when making improvement within the floodplain without changing the entire building. He used 
an example of the base of the bridge crossing into the park. Its base is in the floodplain.  
 
Seth added that soap dispensers and hand driers have been added to make it a cleaner facility. 
 
Montford Complex: The complex includes the ball fields and the Center. There is a master plan 
that was completed in the early 90s. It is a popular park that is much utilized. The playground is 
in bad shape and unsafe. There is a parking problem on the street and at the Center. The 
Montford Park Players want to expand their operation. Tennis players want more parking spaces. 
There are numerous concerns which pull funding in different directions. Because there is much 
to do with the entire complex, we are currently looking at the improvements comprehensively in 
order to revise the Master Plan. One important issue we are looking at is how parents can get 
better visuals and connectivity with children. Tennis courts could be moved due to this. Seth 
added they might be moving away from the original Master Plan. He wants to provide people an 
opportunity to visualize what is being proposed. The estimated cost is $20,000. We might 
include the Montford Park Players amphitheatre expansion into the design.  
 
Montford was the newest center (built in 1974) until the Dr. Wesley Grant, Sr. Southside Center. 
Seth said he is looking at possibly moving the playground up to the parking lots and moving the 
parking lots up to the tennis courts. He added that ample parking is needed to be preserved for 
the Montford Park Players and the ball fields and tennis courts. 
 
Wanda asked how they will utilize the current basketball court and playground areas. Seth said 
the playground would likely come out and the basketball courts would most likely be shifted to a 
different location. Wanda said that in her opinion, the Montford Complex has grown so much 
that it limits its uses if you take away basketball. She said that she understands other people use 
it such as table tennis and badminton players. She added there are many sports centrally located 



at the Center, and basketball courts should be too. Being centrally located will help the 
community and the children of the community. Seth said he would like to keep it. It is used very 
often. Roderick added that is why the Department is spending the time to redesign it and figure 
out how to fit in all the elements. Roderick said it will take time, and these decisions are not yet 
final. 
 
Seth continued that the swings are old and unsafe. Due to these safety issues, we are looking to 
upgrade them in the next few months. He added that children use them and love them. A few 
months ago, Park Maintenance added banding around the field to eliminate ponding to improve 
the ball play. 
 
Kenilworth and Murphy-Oakley Tennis Courts: It has been determined these are the two courts 
in the worst condition in the entire PRCA system. Shiloh is also bad. The Department has had lot 
of calls about these courts. There is deep cracking. We want to replace them anew instead of 
patching or resurfacing them. Seth added that this will yield better results for less money in the 
long term. It will be an expensive endeavour. Seth said there would be funding for some geo-tech 
exploration and to take core samples to understand how much asphalt, sub-base materials, and 
their condition and research the subterranean issues before improvements start. We will use this 
year’s deferred maintenance funds for this research and exploration. Depending on what is found 
will determine the cost of how to proceed. 
 
Roderick asked Seth to speak to what happened at Malvern Hills in the past in regards to 
patching the cracks. Seth said we have a bad track record for patching these cracks. The issues 
come at a subterranean level and we need to address this issue to end the cracking. 
 
Todd asked how long other resurfacing projects lasted. Roderick answered that is was one to two 
years, and this is what he was speaking to. We have been spending close to $20,000 to resurface 
and the cracks are coming back.  He said that it will take more than patching to fix this issue, but 
it needs to be looked into and researched so that we are not wasting money for cracks to 
resurface. 
 
Wanda asked if there are lights at the Kenilworth court. Todd says he does not think so. Roderick 
agrees. She knows Weaver does. Roderick agrees. 
 
Seth continued that it could be 2000 linear feet of patching needed for these courts. He did not 
believe this was financially prudent. 
 
Pack Square Park Pavilion: An irrigation system needs to be implemented in order to provide 
water to the trees and shrubs that will be going in. It will be an $8,000 contract. Installation will 
start in the next few weeks. We have worked closely with Beverly Hanks. Lonnie clarified that it 
is Beverly Grant, not Beverly Hanks. 
 
Wayne wanted clarification on the price of the swings as he does not understand the $5,000 price 
point for swings. He asked how many there would be. Seth answered that there would be eight to 
ten swings.  



Mary Ann asked if the Department was buying the swings locally. Seth said one of the quotes 
was from a local supplier, but they had to purchase from the cheapest vendor. He added that he 
would be working with other local forces to get the other projects accomplished. He says that it 
is rare to get out-of-area contractors. 
 
Wanda said that her pet peeve is the fence at the basketball court at Weaver Park. When 
basketballs leave the court, they roll down the hill into the river. She asked Roderick to address 
this issue. Roderick said he was under the impression a fence was put up, and he asked Al for 
clarification. Al thought so, too but said he would revisit it and let them know.  
 
Wanda also wants better signage at Montford Park because they look bad. Something needs to be 
reconstructed. She wanted to bring this issue back to the forefront. She added that everything 
else looks good but the signs take away from that. 
 
Roderick said that it is his intent to put the sign into the CIP for next year. He added that he 
wants to put money forward to start improving identification and park rules signs with Council’s 
CIP funding in order to build out the sign program. 
 
Mary Ann brought up Pritchard Park. She said that everyone agrees that Pritchard Park is the 
center of Asheville. There is a pond, which she will email a photo to Seth that is created when it 
rains. She wanted to know why the Department cannot fill it. She said that it would be a simple 
fix. She said the water and drinking fountains do not work. The light fixtures on the steps are 
cracked and broken. She said that she did not notice the roof leaking at Oakley, but Asheville’s 
Downtown park has issues that need to be addressed, and it “looks shabby.” Seth said that we 
have not had a method for analyzing what needs to be addressed. There have been talks about 
this as a staff. He added that information needed to be compiled and a plan developed for 
prioritization. 
 
Mary Ann asked how the Department would prioritize. She added that if Al knew about it, why 
would it not be fixed. Seth said he would look into it with his crew. Mary Ann continued that it is 
a simple drinking fountain that needs to be fixed. She offered her plumber to fix it and stated that 
she would send the City the bill. Roderick said he would take a look at it. 
 
Wayne asked how the Department was fixing the area where Occupy Asheville camped. He 
wanted Seth to estimate the cost of the sod for that area. Roderick said it was between $6,000 to 
$8,000, Park Maintenance needs to see if the soil can still promote growth. He did not know the 
extent of the damage, and sod is expensive to replace. 
 
Mary Ann said that she read in the Wall Street Journal that they put grass around the Washington 
Monument. She added 300,000 people walk on it, and it is perfect. She said good grass is out 
there. Seth said he would look into it. 
 
Director’s Report 
Roderick said that everyone should have a statement from the City Attorney to answer the 
questions that everyone had at the last meeting in regards to smoking at Bele Chere. It is not a 
park, and smoking cannot be banned at Bele Chere. 



 
Josh asked if it was sent to Councilman Bothwell. Roderick said he would have it sent to all 
Board members after the meeting. Josh added that he did not want confusion on the matter and 
for everyone to have the same information. 
 
Roderick brought to attention the article in the newspaper that the University of North Carolina – 
Asheville Foundation has purchased the Momentum property. The original plan was to work 
with Momentum for a greenway corridor as part of a land swap. Now that the Foundation has 
bought the land, the Department will work on an agreement with them. He did not know the 
design and construction costs. Those estimates will come once an agreement is worked out. 
 
Roderick announced that Pack Square Park Pavilion should be open at the first or middle of next 
month. He added that restrooms should be open. He is working with the Chamber to have the 
volunteer ambassadors there. The Tourism Development Authority provided funding for the 
pavilion. Downtown ambassadors give out information on hotels and other information. 
 
Wayne asked about the splashpad. It said that people call it spray field. Roderick said that is the 
same thing and that people call it different things. 
 
Mary Ann asked Roderick if he was responsible for the trees dying at the Veteran’s Memorial. 
She asked why they died. Roderick answered that part of the reason was due to the soil. He said 
they were planted by the contractor, and there is no guarantee that trees are going to take with the 
soil. She asked if someone was supposed to water them and did not water them. Roderick said 
this was not the issue. Some vegetation does not thrive when planted; this is the nature of 
outdoor projects. Josh added the trees are not native to this area. This could have been an issue. 
Roderick said the contractor had to replace them twice, and Park Maintenance has to figure out 
what is happening. Al added that when trees die in batches, something is happening with the 
trees. But because these are hearty trees, there must be something genetically wrong. 
 
Reports 
 
Pack Square Conservancy 
Roderick said they have not had a board meeting. 
 
Bele Chere Committee 
Wanda said the next meeting is April 4 at 5:30. Diane added that it is in the normal location 
unless elevator operations is down, which will be determined later. 
 
Lonnie added that in regards to the smoking, he hoped that smoking could be relaxed in 
Pritchard Park during Bele Chere because with all of these rules, it could be confusing. Mary 
Ann said that would a mess. She asked Lonnie if he would be picking up the cigarette butts. 
Lonnie added that he thinks it will be confusing. Mary Ann said that enforcement of the non-
smoking issue was handled last year, and she said that it has to be tried to enforce it. 
 
 
 



Asheville Parks & Greenways Foundation 
Wayne said the Foundation has more members and is trying to lift the profile. He is on the public 
relations committee. The Foundation wants to raise its profile through public relations. He has 
identified one bank that might donate. They are working on the splashpad. He has a meeting of 
the public relations committee on Wednesday. 
 
Other Business 
Mary Ann asked Wanda if she wanted to say anything else about Bele Chere. Wanda said no, but 
she added that the Bele Chere Tobacco Sponsorship Subcommittee will be meeting. Josh said it 
will be during this meeting that the smoking issue will be discussed. Wanda said that the 
subcommittee meeting is on March 20 for those that volunteered to sit on it. She said that it 
would be on March 20 at 5:30. Abigail added that it would be located in the 4th Floor Conference 
Room. 
 
Adjournment 
Wanda asked for a motion to adjourn; it was seconded by Wayne; and all approved. The motion 
passed unanimously.  


